MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR JOINT SUBMISSION TO BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REGARDING THE SUPERVISORY BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION TRADES AND OPERATING ENGINEER EMPLOYEES REPRESENTATION UNIT

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING, made and entered into this 30th day of July 2019,

BY AND BETWEEN

Authorized Management Representatives (hereinafter referred to as "Management") of the County of Los Angeles (hereinafter referred to as "County")

AND

The Joint Council of Los Angeles/ Orange Counties Building and Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO and the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 501, ALF-CIO (hereinafter referred to as "Joint Council").

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>PAGE</u>
ARTICLE 1	RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE 2	PURPOSE	2
ARTICLE 3	IMPLEMENTATION	3
ARTICLE 4	TERM	
ARTICLE 5	RENEGOTIATION	6
ARTICLE 6	NON-DISCRIMINATION	7
ARTICLE 7	SALARIES	
ARTICLE 8	SPECIAL PAY PRACTICES	22
ARTICLE 9	WORK SCHEDULE	27
ARTICLE 10	OVERTIME	
ARTICLE 11	EMPLOYEE BENEFITS & LEAVES OF ABSENCE	33
ARTICLE 12	TOOL REPLACEMENT	35
ARTICLE 13	UNIFORMS	
ARTICLE 14	OUT-OF-CLASS ASSIGNMENTS	39
ARTICLE 15	BULLETIN BOARDS	
ARTICLE 16	CONSULTATION	
ARTICLE 17	PERSONNEL FILES	
ARTICLE 18	ACCESS TO WORK LOCATIONS	
ARTICLE 19	STEWARDS	
ARTICLE 20	SAFETY AND HEALTH	_
ARTICLE 21	LEAVES OF ABSENCE FOR UNION BUSINESS	
ARTICLE 22	PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AND DUES	
ARTICLE 23	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	
ARTICLE 24	EMPLOYEE LISTS	
ARTICLE 25	CONTRACTING OUT AND TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS	
ARTICLE 26	OBLIGATION TO SUPPORT	
ARTICLE 27	STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	
ARTICLE 28	PROVISIONS OF LAW	
ARTICLE 29	FULL UNDERSTANDING, MODIFICATION, WAIVER	
ARTICLE 30	AUTHORIZED AGENTS	
ARTICLE 31	LABOR - MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	_
ARTICLE 32	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
ARTICLE 33	GRIEVANCES - GENERAL IN CHARACTER	
ARTICLE 34	NOTICE OF LAYOFF	78
	APPENDIX A CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAM	
	COMMITTEE	80
	SIGNATURE PAGE	i

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Employee Relations Ordinance of the County of Los Angeles and applicable state law, the Joint Council was certified on March 20, 1986, by the County's Employee Relations Commission (Employee Relations No. SEV 16-85) as the majority representative of County Supervisory Building and Construction Trades and Operating Engineer Employees Representation Unit (hereinafter "Unit or Joint Council") previously found to be appropriate by said Employee Relations Commission. Management hereby recognizes the Joint Council as the certified majority representative of the employees in said Unit.

The term "employee" or "employees" as used herein shall refer only to employees employed by County in said Unit in the employee classifications comprising said Unit as listed in Article 7, Salaries, as well as such classes as may be added hereafter by the Employee Relations Commission.

Management shall recognize the Joint Council as the exclusive representative of the employees in said Unit subject to appropriate action of the Board of Supervisors and, if necessary, the Employee Relations Commission.

ARTICLE 2 PURPOSE

It is the purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding to promote and provide for harmonious relations, cooperation and understanding between Management and the employees covered herein; to provide and orderly and equitable means of resolving and misunderstandings or differences which may arise under this Memorandum of Understanding; and to set forth the full and entire understanding of the parties reached as a result of good faith negotiations regarding wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment of the employees covered hereby, which understanding the parties intend jointly to submit and recommend for approval and implementation to County's Board of Supervisors.

ARTICLE 3 <u>IMPLEMENTATION</u>

This Memorandum of Understanding constitutes a mutual recommendation to be jointly submitted to County's Board of Supervisors. It is agreed that this Memorandum of Understanding shall not be binding upon the parties unless and until said Board of Supervisors:

- A. Acts, by majority vote, formally to approve said Memorandum of Understanding;
- B. Enacts necessary amendments to all County ordinances, including Title 6 of the Los Angeles County Code, required to implement the full provisions of articles; and
- C. Acts to appropriate the necessary funds required to implement the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding which require funding.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the Board of Supervisors fails to take all actions necessary to timely implement this Memorandum of Understanding, it is understood that the parties may mutually agree to implement appropriate provisions of this Memorandum which do not require specific approval by the Board of Supervisors.

Implementation shall be effective October 1, 2018, or within 30 days following Board of Supervisors' action whichever is later. If the parties do not mutually agree to implement appropriate provisions of this Memorandum not requiring approval by the Board of Supervisors, then negotiations shall resume upon the request of either party.

ARTICLE 4 TERM

The term of this Memorandum of Understanding shall commence on October 1, 2018 and shall expire at midnight, September 30, 2021, unless the parties have reached agreement on a successor Memorandum of Understanding by that date.

ARTICLE 5 RENEGOTIATION

Section 1.

In the event either party hereto desires to negotiate the provisions of a successor Memorandum of Understanding, such party shall serve upon the other, during the period from June 15, 2021, to June 30, 2021, its written request to commence negotiations as well as its written proposals for such successor Memorandum of Understanding. Negotiations shall begin no later than 30 days unless the parties mutually agree to extend from date of receipt of aforementioned notice and proposals. If full and entire agreement on the terms of a successor Memorandum of Understanding is not reached by August 31, 2021 an impasse shall be automatically declared on those issues which remain in dispute unless the parties mutually agree to continue negotiations.

ARTICLE 6 NON-DISCRIMINATION

The parties mutually recognize and mutually agree to fully protect the rights of all employees covered hereby to join and participate in the activities if the member unions of the Los Angeles/Orange Counties Building & Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO and the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 501, AFL-CIO and all other rights in the Employee Relations Ordinance and Government Code, Section 3500 through 3511.

The provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding shall be applied equally to all employees covered hereby without favor or discrimination because of race, color, sex, age, national origin, political or religious opinions or affiliations, disability status, or other factors not directly related to the successful performance of the job.

ARTICLE 7 SALARIES

Section 1.

A. The parties agree jointly to recommend to the County's Board of Supervisors that said Board adopt the following relationships:

The BU 412 classification tied to benchmark classes in BU 411 shall receive general salary increases:

October 1, 2018	8 Levels	2%
October 1, 2019	10 Levels	2.5%
January 1, 2020	4 Levels	1%
October 1, 2020	10 Levels	2.5%
January 1, 2021	11 Levels	2.75%

The following BU 412 classifications tied to benchmark classes in BU 401 shall receive general salary increases:

7202 – Assistant Chief Stationary Engineer;

7203 - Chief Stationary Engineer;

7227 – Waste Water Treatment Plant Operator Supervisor.

October 1, 2018	8 Levels	2%
October 1, 2019	10 Levels	2.5%
January 1, 2020	4 Levels	1%
October 1, 2020	10 Levels	2.5%
January 1, 2021	11 Levels	2.75%

Item <u>No.</u>	<u>Title</u>	Basis for Adjustment Over Benchmark Classes
7202	* Assistant Chief Stationary Engineer	15% over Stationary Engineer II
6213	Bridge Maintenance Supervisor	25% over Bridge Maintenance Worker
6617	Building & Equipment & Maintenance Supervisor, AVRC	4 schedules over Building Equipment Maintenance Worker, AVRC
6266	Carpenter Supervisor	15% over Carpenter
6263	Carpenter Working Supervisor	10% over Carpenter
6285	Carpet & Linoleum Layer Supervisor	15% over Carpet & Linoleum Layer
6283	Carpet & Linoleum Layer Working Supervisor	10% over Carpet & Linoleum Layer
6486	Chief Electrician Supervisor	22.5% over Electrician
7203	* Chief Stationary Engineer	25% over Stationary Engineer II
7824	Communications Tower & Line Supervisor	I5% over Communications Tower & Line Worker
7822	Communications Tower & Line Working Supervisor	10% over Communications Tower & Line Worker
7317	Diamond Driller & Grouter Working Supervisor	10% over Diamond Driller & Grouter
6480	Electrician Supervisor	15% over Electrician
6477	Electrician Working Supervisor	10% over Electrician
6498	Electro-Mechanic Supervisor	15%over Electro-Mechanic
6495	Electro-Mechanic Working Supervisor	10%over Electro-Mechanic

Item <u>No.</u>	<u>Title</u>	Basis for Adjustment Over Benchmark Classes
6538	Electronics Audio Technician Supervisor	15% over Electronic Audio Technician
6544	Electronics Communications Technician Supervisor	15% over Electronic Communications Technician
6543	Electronics Communications Tech Working Supervisor	10% over Electronic Communications Technician
6510	Elevator Mechanic Supervisor Mechanic	15%overElevator
6507	Elevator Mechanic Working Supervisor	10% over Elevator Mechanic
6271	Head, Carpentry Crafts, Mechanical	22.5% over Carpenter
6484	Head, Electrical Crafts, ISD	22.5% over Electrician
6514	Head, Elevator Crafts, ISD	22.5% over Elevator Mechanic
7277	Head, Plumbing Crafts, ISD	22.5% over Plumber
7765	Head, Steam Fitter & Refrigeration Crafts, ISD	22.5% over Steam Fitter
7742	Heat & Frost Insulator Supervisor	15% over Heat & Frost Insulator
7741	Heat & Frost Insulator Working Supervisor	10% over Head & Frost Insulator
6707	Locksmith Supervisor	15% over Locksmith
6706	Locksmith Working Supervisor	10% over Locksmith
6184	Mason Supervisor	15% over Plasterer
6181	Mason Working Supervisor	10% over Plasterer
6533	Medical Electronics Technician Working Supervisor	10% over Medical Electronics Technician

Item <u>No.</u>	<u>Title</u>	Basis for Adjustment Over Benchmark Classes
7525	Millwright Supervisor	15% over Millwright
7523	Millwright Working Supervisor	10% over Millwright
6982	Painter Supervisor	15% over Painter
6979	Painter Working Supervisor	10% over Painter
7275	Plumber Supervisor	15% over Plumber
7272	Plumber Working Supervisor	10% over Plumber
6456	Power Line Working Supervisor	10% over Power Line Worker
7747	Refrigeration Mechanic Working Supervisor	10% over Refrigeration Mechanic
6294	Roofer Supervisor	15% over Roofer
6292	Roofer Working Supervisor	10% over Roofer
6483	Senior Electrician Supervisor	20% over Electrician
6499	Senior Electro-Mechanic	20% over Electro- Mechanic Supervisor
7668	Sheet Metal Supervisor Worker	15% over Sheet Metal
7665	Sheet Metal Working Supervisor Worker	10% over Sheet Metal
7763	Steam Fitter & Refrigeration Supervisor	15% over Steam Fitter
7760	Steam Fitter & Refrigeration Working Supervisor	10% over Steam Fitter
7757	Steam Fitter Supervisor	15% over Steam Fitter
7753	Steam Fitter Working Supervisor	10% over Steam Fitter
6529	Supervising Digital Systems Technician	15% over Digital Systems Technician

Item No.	<u>Title</u>	Basis for Adjustment Over Benchmark Classes
7227	* Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Supervisor	15% over Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator
6121	Welder-Fitter Supervisor	15% over Welder-Fitter
6120	Welder-Fitter Working Supervisor	10% over Welder-Fitter
6114	Welder Working Supervisor	10% over Welder

- * The initial salary increases of January 1, 2005, for these classes whose salaries are tied to subordinate benchmark classes in Bargaining Unit 401 shall not be implemented until the Board of Supervisors' adopts the successor 401 Memorandum of Understanding for the term January 1, 2004, to September 30, 2006.
- B. The salaries for classes shown below shall be effective on the dates indicated.

ITEM ITEM NO CLASSIFICATION		CTIVE			MUM	MAXIMUM RATE
ITEM ITEM NO CLASSIFICATION	EFFECTIVE DATE		SCH	MINI RATE	MAXIMU RATE	ML
7202 ASSISTANT CHIEF STATIONARY ENGINEER	CURRENT		F		813	35.99
	10/01/2018	;	F		829	98.71
	10/01/2019)	F		856	96.18
	01/01/2020)	F		859	91.24
	10/01/2020)	F		886	06.02
	01/01/2021		F		904	18.19
6550 AUDIO,VIDEO,& SEC SYST TECH SUPVR	CURRENT		F		826	08.80
	10/01/2018	;	F		837	72.98
	10/01/2019)	F		858	32.30
	01/01/2020)	F		866	58.12
	10/01/2020)	F		888	34.82
	01/01/2021		F		912	29.15

6213 BRIDGE MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		7479.16
	10/01/2018	F		7628.74
	10/01/2019	F		7819.46
	01/01/2020	F		7897.65
	10/01/2020	F		8095.09
	01/01/2021	F		8317.70
6617 BLDG & EQUIPMENT MAINT SUPVR, AVRC	CURRENT	89K	4784.55	5943.91
	10/01/2018	90G	4880.00	6062.45
	10/01/2019	91F	5001.82	6213.82
	01/01/2020	91K	5051.27	6275.27
	10/01/2020	92J	5177.82	6431.82
	01/01/2021 NO	92J	5177.82	6608.45
6266 CARPENTER SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		6859.56
	10/01/2018	F		6996.75
	10/01/2019	F		7171.67
	01/01/2020	F		7243.39
	10/01/2020	F		7424.47
	01/01/2021	F		7628.64
	01, 01, 1011	·		, 020101
6263 CARPENTER WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		6561.32
ozos chin zin zin nomizno sol zin zson	10/01/2018	F		6692.55
	10/01/2019	F		6859.86
	01/01/2020	F		6928.46
	10/01/2020	F		7101.67
	01/01/2021	r F		7296.97
	01/01/2021	'		7230.37
6283 CARPET & LINOLEUM LAYER WKG SUPVR	CURRENT	F		6668.62
SESS CARRET & ELINOLEGIT EATER MING SOFT AN	10/01/2018	F		6801.99
	10/01/2019	r F		6972.04
	01/01/2020	r F		7041.76
	10/01/2020	F		7217.80
	01/01/2021	F		7416.29
	01/01/2021	'		7410.23
6486 CHIEF ELECTRICIAN SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		8832.49
0400 CHIEF ELECTRICIAN SOFERVISOR	10/01/2018	r F		9009.14
	• •	r F		9234.37
	10/01/2019	F		9326.71
	01/01/2020 10/01/2020	F		
		F		9559.88
	01/01/2021	Г		9822.78
7203 CHIEF STATIONARY ENGINEER	CURRENT	F		0025 76
7203 CHIEF STATIONART ENGINEER	10/01/2018	F		8825.76
				9002.28
	10/01/2019	F		9227.34
	01/01/2020	F F		9319.61
	10/01/2020			9552.60
	01/01/2021	F		9815.30
7824 COMMUNICATIONS TOWER & LINE SUPVR	CURRENT	F		7671 60
7024 COMMINICATIONS TOWER & LINE SUPVR	CURRENT	F F		7674.68
	10/01/2018	F		7828.17
	10/01/2019			8023.87
	01/01/2020	F		8104.11
	10/01/2020	F		8306.71
	01/01/2021	F		8535.14

7822 COMMUNICATIONS TOWR & LINE WKG SPVR	CURRENT	F	7341.00
	10/01/2018	F	7487.82
	10/01/2019	F	7675.02
	01/01/2020	F	7751.77
	10/01/2020	F	7945.56
	01/01/2021	F	8164.06
6529 DIGITAL COMM SYST TECH SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	8208.80
OSES BIGLINE COM STOLLER SOLERVISOR	10/01/2018	F	8372.98
	10/01/2019	F	8582.30
	01/01/2020	F	8668.12
	10/01/2020	F	8884.82
	01/01/2021	F	9129.15
	01/01/2021	•	3123.13
7324 DRILLER SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	7705.82
	10/01/2018	F	7859.94
	10/01/2019	F	8056.44
	01/01/2020	F	8137.00
	10/01/2020	F	8340.43
	01/01/2021	F	8569.79
6480 ELECTRICIAN SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	8291.70
0400 ELECTRICIAN SOFERVISOR	10/01/2018	r F	8457.53
	10/01/2019	r F	8668.97
	01/01/2020	F	8755.66
	10/01/2020	r F	8974.55
		F	
	01/01/2021	г	9221.35
6477 ELECTRICIAN WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	7931.21
6477 ELECTRICIAN WORKING SUPERVISOR			
6477 ELECTRICIAN WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	7931.21
6477 ELECTRICIAN WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018	F F	7931.21 8089.83
6477 ELECTRICIAN WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08
6477 ELECTRICIAN WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019	F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00
6477 ELECTRICIAN WORKING SUPERVISOR 6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020	F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38
	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45
	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT	F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45
	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018	F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53
	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019	F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97
	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020	F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35
	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT CURRENT	F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT	F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT	F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35 7931.21 8089.83 8292.08
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2019	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35 7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT	F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35 7931.21 8089.83 8292.08
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR 6495 ELECTRO-MECHANIC WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 01/01/2020	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35 7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35 7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR 6495 ELECTRO-MECHANIC WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 CURRENT 10/01/2018	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35 7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR 6495 ELECTRO-MECHANIC WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2018 10/01/2019	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35 7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 7798.32 7954.29 8153.15
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR 6495 ELECTRO-MECHANIC WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35 7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 7798.32 7954.29 8153.15 8234.68
6498 ELECTRO-MECHANIC SUPERVISOR 6495 ELECTRO-MECHANIC WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2018 10/01/2019	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 8291.70 8457.53 8668.97 8755.66 8974.55 9221.35 7931.21 8089.83 8292.08 8375.00 8584.38 8820.45 7798.32 7954.29 8153.15

6544 ELECTRONICS COMMUNIC TECH SUPVR	CURRENT	F	8208.80
	10/01/2018	F	8372.98
	10/01/2019	F	8582.30
	01/01/2020	F	8668.12
	10/01/2020	F	8884.82
	01/01/2021	F	9129.15
6543 ELECTRONICS COMMUNIC TECH WKG SUPVR	CURRENT	F	7851.92
	10/01/2018	F	8008.96
	10/01/2019	F	8209.18
	01/01/2020	F	8291.27
	10/01/2020	F	8498.55
	01/01/2021	F	8732.26
6510 ELEVATOR MECHANIC SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	9137.32
	10/01/2018	F	9786.07
	10/01/2019	F	10532.26
	01/01/2020	F	10637.58
	10/01/2020	F	11448.70
	01/01/2021	F	11763.54
6507 ELEVATOR MECHANIC WORKING SUPVR	CURRENT	F	8740.02
	10/01/2018	F	9360.56
	10/01/2019	F	10074.30
	01/01/2020	F	10175.04
	10/01/2020	F	10950.89
	01/01/2021	F	11252.04
6484 HEAD,ELECTRICAL CRAFTS,ISD	CURRENT	F	8832.49
0484 HEAD, ELECTRICAL CRAFTS, 130	10/01/2018	r F	9009.14
		_	
	10/01/2019	F	9234.37
	10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F	9234.37 9326.71
	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020	F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88
6514 HEAD ELEVATOR CRAETS ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78
6514 HEAD,ELEVATOR CRAFTS,ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT	F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21
6514 HEAD, ELEVATOR CRAFTS, ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018	F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27
6514 HEAD, ELEVATOR CRAFTS, ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019	F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12
6514 HEAD,ELEVATOR CRAFTS,ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31
6514 HEAD,ELEVATOR CRAFTS,ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32
6514 HEAD, ELEVATOR CRAFTS, ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31
	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69
6514 HEAD, ELEVATOR CRAFTS, ISD 7277 HEAD, PLUMBING CRAFTS, ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69
	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018	F F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69
	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019	F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69
	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018	F F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89 9426.22
	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89
7277 HEAD, PLUMBING CRAFTS, ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89 9426.22 9661.88 9927.58
	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT CURRENT	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89 9426.22 9661.88 9927.58
7277 HEAD, PLUMBING CRAFTS, ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89 9426.22 9661.88 9927.58 8926.73 9105.26
7277 HEAD, PLUMBING CRAFTS, ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2018 10/01/2018	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89 9426.22 9661.88 9927.58 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89
7277 HEAD, PLUMBING CRAFTS, ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89 9426.22 9661.88 9927.58 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89 9426.22
7277 HEAD, PLUMBING CRAFTS, ISD	10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2018 10/01/2018	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	9234.37 9326.71 9559.88 9822.78 9733.21 10424.27 11219.12 11331.31 12195.32 12530.69 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89 9426.22 9661.88 9927.58 8926.73 9105.26 9332.89

7741 HEAT & FROST INSULATOR WKG SUPVR	CURRENT	F	7684.68
	10/01/2018	F	7838.37
	10/01/2019	F	8034.33
	01/01/2020	F	8114.67
	10/01/2020	F	8317.54
	01/01/2021	F	8546.27
CZOZ LOCKCMITH CUDEDVICOD	CURRENT	F	6050 56
6707 LOCKSMITH SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	6859.56
	10/01/2018	F	6996.75
	10/01/2019	F	7171.67
	01/01/2020	F	7243.39
	10/01/2020	F _	7424.47
	01/01/2021	F	7628.64
6184 MASON SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	6945.66
	10/01/2018	F	7084.57
	10/01/2019	F	7261.68
	01/01/2020	F	7334.30
	10/01/2020	F	7517.66
	01/01/2021	F	7724.40
6181 MASON WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	6643.69
	10/01/2018	F	6776.56
	10/01/2019	F	6945.97
	01/01/2020	F	7015.43
	10/01/2020	F	7190.82
	01/01/2021	F	7388.57
		_	
6533 MEDICAL ELECTRONICS TECH WKG SUPVR	CURRENT	F _	7850.92
	10/01/2018	F	8007.94
	10/01/2019	F	8208.14
	01/01/2020	F _	8290.22
	10/01/2020	F	8497.48
	01/01/2021	F _	8731.16
7525 MILLWRIGHT SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	7586.68
	10/01/2018	F	7738.41
	10/01/2019	F	7931.87
	01/01/2020	F	8011.19
	10/01/2020	F	8211.47
	01/01/2021	F	8437.29
6982 PAINTER SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	6109.84
	10/01/2018	F	6232.04
	10/01/2019	F	6387.84
	01/01/2020	F	6451.72
	10/01/2020	F	6613.01
	01/01/2021	F	6794.87
6979 PAINTER WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F	5844.16
	10/01/2018	F	5961.04
	10/01/2019	F	6110.07
	10,01,2013		
	01/01/2020	F	6171.17
		F F	6171.17 6325.45
	01/01/2020		

7275 PLUMBER SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		8380.22
	10/01/2018	F		8547.82
	10/01/2019	F		8761.52
	01/01/2020	F		8849.14
	10/01/2020	F		9070.37
	01/01/2021	F		9319.81
TOTO BUILDING LIGHTING CUREDUTCOR	CURRENT	_		0045 07
7272 PLUMBER WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F -		8015.87
	10/01/2018	F -		8176.19
	10/01/2019	F -		8380.59
	01/01/2020	F		8464.40
	10/01/2020	F -		8676.01
	01/01/2021	F		8914.60
7747 REFRIGERATION MECHANIC WKG SUPVR	CURRENT	F		8015.87
	10/01/2018	F		8176.19
	10/01/2019	F		8380.59
	01/01/2020	F		8464.40
	10/01/2020	F		8676.01
	01/01/2021	F		8914.60
7857 REGIONAL WATER SERVICE SUPT	CURRENT	108K	8009.91	9950.27
	10/01/2018	109G	8169.55	10149.00
	10/01/2019	110F	8373.18	10402.64
	01/01/2020	110K	8455.73	10505.55
	10/01/2020	111 J	8667.18	10767.91
	01/01/2021 NO	1117	8667.18	11063.73
6294 ROOFER SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		6630 28
6294 ROOFER SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		6630.28 6762.89
6294 ROOFER SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018	F		6762.89
6294 ROOFER SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019	F F		6762.89 6931.96
6294 ROOFER SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28
6294 ROOFER SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020	F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31
	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66
6294 ROOFER SUPERVISOR 6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT	F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99
	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018	F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83
	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019	F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55
	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86
	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020	F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28
	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86
	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020	F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT	F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018	F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05 8112.05 8274.29
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019	F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05 8112.05 8274.29 8481.15
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2019 01/01/2020	F F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05 8112.05 8274.29 8481.15 8565.96
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR 7668 SHEET METAL SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05 8112.05 8274.29 8481.15 8565.96 8780.11 9021.56
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 01/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT	F F F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05 8112.05 8274.29 8481.15 8565.96 8780.11 9021.56
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR 7668 SHEET METAL SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 CURRENT	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05 8112.05 8274.29 8481.15 8565.96 8780.11 9021.56 7759.35 7914.54
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR 7668 SHEET METAL SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2020 10/01/2021	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05 8112.05 8274.29 8481.15 8565.96 8780.11 9021.56 7759.35 7914.54 8112.40
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR 7668 SHEET METAL SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2020 01/01/2021	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05 8112.05 8274.29 8481.15 8565.96 8780.11 9021.56 7759.35 7914.54 8112.40 8193.52
6292 ROOFER WORKING SUPERVISOR 7668 SHEET METAL SUPERVISOR	10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 01/01/2021 CURRENT 10/01/2018 10/01/2019 01/01/2019 01/01/2020 10/01/2020 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2020 CURRENT 10/01/2020 10/01/2021	F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F		6762.89 6931.96 7001.28 7176.31 7373.66 6341.99 6468.83 6630.55 6696.86 6864.28 7053.05 8112.05 8274.29 8481.15 8565.96 8780.11 9021.56 7759.35 7914.54 8112.40

7763 STEAM FITTER & REFRIGERATION SUPVR	CURRENT	F		8380.22
	10/01/2018	F		8547.82
	10/01/2019	F		8761.52
	01/01/2020	F		8849.14
	10/01/2020	F		9070.37
	01/01/2021	F		9319.81
7760 STEAM FITTER & REFRIG WKG SUPVR	CURRENT	F		8015.87
	10/01/2018	F		8176.19
	10/01/2019	F		8380.59
	01/01/2020	F		8464.40
	10/01/2020	F		8676.01
	01/01/2021	F		8914.60
	,,			
7757 STEAM FITTER SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		8380.22
	10/01/2018	F		8547.82
	10/01/2019	F		8761.52
	01/01/2020	F.		8849.14
	10/01/2020	F		9070.37
	01/01/2021	F		9319.81
	01/01/2021	•		JJ1J.01
7753 STEAM FITTER WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		8015.87
7733 STEATTITER WORKING SOFERVISOR	10/01/2018	F		8176.19
	10/01/2019	F		8380.59
	01/01/2020	F		8464.40
	10/01/2020	F		8676.01
	01/01/2021	F		8914.60
	01/01/2021	F		0514.00
7227 WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT OPR SUPV	CURRENT	F		8119.72
	10/01/2018	F		8282.11
	10/01/2019	F		8489.16
	01/01/2020	F		8574.05
	10/01/2020	F		8788.40
	01/01/2021	F		9030.08
	01/ 01/ 2021	•		3030.00
7856 WATER SERVICE SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	100J	6431.82	7990.36
	10/01/2018	101F	6559.91	8149.45
	10/01/2019	102E	6723.55	8352.55
	01/01/2020	102J	6790.09	8435.09
	10/01/2020	103H	6959.64	8645.91
	01/01/2021 NO	103H	6959.64	8883.73
			-	
6121 WELDER-FITTER SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		8380.22
	10/01/2018	F		8547.82
	10/01/2019	F		8761.52
	01/01/2020	F		8849.14
	10/01/2020	F		9070.37
	01/01/2021	F		9319.81
	,, -	•		
6120 WELDER-FITTER WORKING SUPERVISOR	CURRENT	F		8015.87
	10/01/2018	F		8176.19
	10/01/2019	F		8380.59
	01/01/2020	F		8464.40
	10/01/2020	F		8676.01
	01/01/2021	F		8914.60
	• •			

Section 2. Step Advances

- a. Full-time permanent employees in this unit who are below the top step of the salary range and who are eligible for an annual step advance will be granted a step advance only when a competent or better Performance Evaluation has been filed by the employee's department head. The Performance Evaluation shall be filed at least one month prior to the employee's step advance anniversary date and within a period which does not exceed one year prior to that date.
- b. If no performance review is filed as defined in a. above, or if an employee receives an Improvement Needed Performance Evaluation, the employee's step advance will not be granted on the date due.

Where no Performance Evaluation is issued in accordance with Paragraph a. above, the employee may request his department in writing to issue a Performance Evaluation. The department head shall issue a Performance Evaluation within five days of the employee's request. If said Evaluation is competent or better, the employee shall be granted a step advance effective to his step advance anniversary date.

- c. Grievances arising out of this section shall be processed as follows:
 - (1) Where no Performance Evaluation has been issued in accordance with Paragraph b. above, the employee may file a grievance with the Department of Human Resources. If the Department of Human Resources fails to obtain

issuance of such Performance Evaluation within ten days after the grievance is filed with the Department of Human Resources, the employee shall be deemed competent and the step advance shall be processed within 30 days effective to his step anniversary date.

- (2) Where the department head issues a Performance Evaluation upon request of the Department of Human Resources, and said Performance Evaluation is competent or better, the employee shall be provided a step advance within 30 days effective to his step advance anniversary date.
- (3) Grievances based on an Improvement Needed Performance Evaluation shall be filed within ten days of issuance with the department head or his designated representative who shall respond to the grievance within ten days. Appeals from a department head decision shall be processed in accordance with Civil Service Rules.
- d. During the term of this agreement, should any changes be made in the existing categories of Performance Evaluations which adversely impacts the application of this section, the parties agree to meet and renegotiate this section. In the event an agreement cannot be reached through negotiations, it is agreed that the Union may submit the dispute to arbitration. The arbitrator shall issue an award on the step advances as affected by the changes in existing categories of Performance Evaluations.

Section 3.

The parties having jointly reviewed and considered available salary and wage information and data, agree that the recommended salaries set forth herein were negotiated in good faith, and that said salaries were determined independently of race, gender, age or national origin.

ARTICLE 8 SPECIAL PAY PRACTICES

Section 1.

All MOU 412 classifications shall receive the same Standby Pay as MOU 411 classifications.

The following classifications shall receive the same bonus amounts for Relief Bonus, Cogeneration Hydroelectric Operation/Maintenance Bonus, and Shift Differential as is paid to classifications in bargaining Unit 401, Plant Operating Engineers.

- 7202 Assistant Chief Stationary Engineer
- -- 7203 Chief Stationary Engineer
- -- 7227 Waste Water Treatment Plant Operator Supervisor

All other classes in the unit shall receive the same amounts for the above bonuses as are paid classes in bargaining Unit 411, Building Trades and Skilled Craftsmen.

Section 2. Assignment of Additional Responsibilities

Any permanent full-time employee shall be entitled to additional compensation of 5.5% above the established base rate for their classification for the performance of additional responsibilities which are assigned or approved by the Department Head and approved by the Chief Executive Officer. This additional compensation shall begin on the first day the additional responsibilities are performed and shall end on the day the additional responsibilities are no longer performed.

In no event shall an employee receive compensation pursuant to this Section and receive the out-of-class bonus pursuant to Article 14, Out-of-Class Assignments for the same assignment.

The additional compensation provided in this Article shall not constitute a base rate.

Section 3. Call Back

Whenever an employee is unexpectedly ordered by his Department Head or designated management representative to return to work following the termination of his normal work shift or normal workweek and departure from his work location, the employee shall receive a payment of four hours' pay at the rate of time and one-half of the employee's regular rates of pay. Work performed in excess of four hours will be compensated for in accordance with provisions of Article 10, Overtime.

If an employee should complete work required, leave the work location, and subsequently be recalled during the four-hour period being compensated for as a result of the initial call back, no additional compensation will be paid until four hours have been worked by the employee; i.e., there shall be no pyramiding of time and one-half pay as a result of call back.

If an employee's work schedule must be altered to accommodate operational requirements on any scheduled work day and the employee is required to report for work up to two hours earlier than his normal shift starting time, this shall be considered an early shift start and not a call back.

Employees assigned to an early shift start will be allowed to work to the end of their normal shift provided work is available in their classification.

Section 4. Compensation for Holidays Worked

Any shift employee in this Unit who is scheduled to work on defined holidays per the County Code and who, prior to January 1 of each year, elects to be paid for holidays worked in lieu of accruing deferred holiday leave, shall be paid eight (8) hours at straight time rates for each holiday worked. Holiday pay is for holiday work and shall not be considered or paid as overtime under the terms of this agreement.

Section 5. Standby Pay

Effective January 1, 2016, it is understood and agreed that SHERIFF DEPARTMENT employees in this UNIT who are assigned regularly-scheduled periods of authorized standby service at off-duty times shall receive a \$1.50 per hour bonus for such service to a maximum of \$400.00 per month.

Effective January 1, 2016, it is understood and agreed that PUBLIC WORKS employees in this UNIT who are assigned regularly-scheduled periods of authorized standby service at off-duty times shall receive a \$1.50 per hour bonus for such service to maximum of \$400.per month.

Section 6. Evening and Night Shift Differential

Effective October 1, 2017, the evening, and night shift differential shall increase by forty cents (\$.40) per hour for a total of one dollar (\$1.00) per hour above the established rate for the classification.

Section 7. Bonus Assignment

In accordance to County Code Section 6.109.020, persons assigned to the Waterworks and Sewer Maintenance Division in the classes of Assistant Electro-Mechanic (Item No. 6490), Electro-Mechanic (Item No. 6492), Electro-Mechanic Working Supervisors (Item No. 6495), Electro-Mechanic Supervisors (Item No. 6498), Helper, Electric (Item No. 6349), who are engaged on a permanent full-time basis in sewer maintenance duties shall be compensated at a rate of four salary schedules higher that that otherwise provided in Section 6.28.140 of the County Code.

Effective January 1, 2016, persons in the same classes above assigned to the Waterworks Division, engaged in drinking water treatment and distribution duties shall be compensated at a rate of four salary schedules higher than that otherwise provided in Section 6.28.140 of the County Code.

Section 8. <u>ISD Bonus Assignment - Energy Management System Section</u> (BEAS)

Whenever a permanent employee in the Steam Fitter and Refrigeration Working Supervisor (Item No. 7760) classification in this Bargaining Unit is assigned to the Energy Management System Section (BEAS), the employee shall receive an additional bonus of 5.5% percent of the base monthly salary.

Section 9. Sheriff Department – Water Systems Bonus

Any full time, permanent employee in the classification of Plumber Working Supervisor (Item No. 7272), or Plumber Supervisor (Item No. 7275), who holds the required certification and is designated by Management to act as the Chief Operator for the Sheriff's Department's water systems, shall be compensated at a rate 5.6468% higher than that established for such position in this Memorandum of Understanding.

Any full time, permanent employee in the classification of Plumber Working Supervisor (Item No. 7272), or Plumber Supervisor (Item No. 7275), who holds the required certification and is designated by Management to act as the Shift Operator for the Sheriff's Department's water systems, shall be compensated at a rate 5% higher than that established for such position in this Memorandum of Understanding.

Section 10. California Driver's License A/B Bonus

Effective October 1, 2018, notwithstanding other provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding, persons in the bargaining unit who, with the approval of management, obtain or renew a class "A" or "B" motor vehicle license, that is not as a normal practice required for the class in which they are employed, shall be entitled to a three percent (3%) bonus. This provision does not apply to employees that acquire an "A" or "B" Motor vehicle license in connection with their voluntary participation in a departmental training program.

ARTICLE 9 WORK SCHEDULE

<u>Purpose</u>

This article is intended to define the normal hours of work and shall not be construed as a guarantee of hours of work per day or per week, or of days of work per week.

A. Work Week

- The normal work week shall be five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour work days, except as provided in Section D. Each eight-hour shift shall include, exclusive of at least a thirty (30) minute lunch period, two 15 minute rest periods, one scheduled during each half of the assigned shift. During rest periods, employees shall be relieved of all duties and may leave their immediate work locations but must remain within general area as prescribed by management.
- 2. For persons working a post position, the workweek shall average five (5) workdays and at least two (2) consecutive rest days per week exclusive of holidays. Eight (8) consecutive hours of work shall constitute the workday for post position employees. Post position employees will be permitted time to eat on shift when conditions permit.

B. Work Shifts

Employees shall be scheduled to work on regular work shifts having regular starting and quitting times. Except for emergencies (see Section D), employees' work schedules shall not be changed without written notice to the employee at least ten (10) working days prior to the date the change is to be effective. Irregular work schedules shall not be changed without written notice to the employee at least ten (10) working days prior to the date the change is to be effective. Shift changes shall be for a minimum of five (5) consecutive days.

C. Saturday and Sunday Schedules

Work schedules which include Saturday and Sunday will be established only when essential to the County's public service. In no event shall such schedules be established to deprive employees of payment for overtime.

D. <u>Emergencies</u>

Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the authority of management to make temporary assignments to different or additional locations, shifts or work duties for the purpose of meeting emergencies. However, such emergency assignments shall not extend beyond the period of such emergency.

E. Nothing herein shall be construed to affect in any manner whatsoever irregular work day or work week assignments required for the maintenance of necessary operations.

F. The parties agree that when an employee works in excess of his/her regularly scheduled work hours in a day, management may direct the employee to take off an equivalent number of hours during the same work week. Management will make reasonable efforts to accommodate an employee's choice of the equivalent number of hours to be taken off in the same work week.

G. <u>Alternative Work Schedules</u>

Employees may request alternative work schedules such as a nine (9) day - 80 hour two week schedule or a four (4) day - 40 hour week schedule. Management will respond to an employee's request within 15 calendar days. Any changes from existing work schedules will be based on the needs of the service as determined by Management. Employees covered by the Fair Labor Standards Act will not be placed on alternate work schedules that mandate the payment of overtime under the Act.

ARTICLE 10 OVERTIME

Section 1. Compensation

The parties agree to jointly recommend to the County's Board of Supervisors that overtime shall be compensated as follows:

A. The County will pay overtime for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in one week. "hours worked" will be calculated as provided for by the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U&.S.C. §201, et seq. Hours worked do not include time for which persons are compensated but do not actually work, including but not limited to, sick leave and vacation pay, with the exception that those hours paid during a workweek for a regular County holiday will be counted in calculating hours worked for overtime purposes.

The County will pay employees for any overtime worked at a rate of one and one-half (1 ½) times his/her regular rate of pay. Regular rate of pay shall be calculated as provided for by the Fair Labor Standards Act.

Supervisors that receive phone calls from the Department after normal work hours regarding assistance, guidance, or clarity of work assignments for staff, will be entitled to compensation.

Overtime shall be earned, credited and paid or taken off in increments of 15 minutes.

If a supervisor accepts a call after hours and provides assistance, they shall be compensated at their respective overtime rate of pay of fifteen (15) minute increments. Subsequently, if additional calls are received within the same fifteen (15) minute period, no additional time will be compensated.

Calls received after the passing of the previously compensated fifteen (15) minutes will constitute a new fifteen (15) minute period.

The receipt of a call must be documented upon the next normal business day with detailed documentation as to what transpired. Indicate if any additional work was directly performed or if staff was assigned to address the issue.

B. Effective July 1, 1996, an employee may elect to accrue up to 30 hours of FLSA overtime worked to be used as compensatory time off in lieu of pay, at the rate of one and one-half (1½) hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee who wants to use his/her accumulated compensatory time must submit a written request ten working days in advance of the dates for which time off is desired. Such accumulated compensatory time may be taken off by an employee subject to departmental staffing considerations and with prior approval of departmental management.

Employees may not accrue overtime hours which are worked during a Board of Supervisors, State, or Federally declared emergency and/or disaster periods, unless Management approves the accrual of such overtime hours.

Section 2. Distribution of Overtime

Management shall assign overtime work as equitably as possible among all qualified employees in the same classification in the same organizational work unit and work location. In the assignment of overtime under this provision, however, management may consider special skills required to perform particular work.

Section 3. Work Week

For the purpose of computing overtime, the work week for employees in this Unit is 40 hours of work in a seven consecutive day period as defined by management.

Section 4. Compensatory Time Off

On or after August 1, 1995, at the employee's option, Compensatory Time Off (CTO) accrued during the period October 1, 1993 through and including June 30, 1994 and remaining on the books may continue to be taken as time off, subject to management approval, or may be converted to pay. An employee electing payment for any portion of such CTO accrual balance may submit a request and within forty-five (45) days of that request, shall be paid at the rate of pay then in effect for the employee.

<u>ARTICLE 11</u> <u>EMPLOYEE BENEFITS & LEAVES OF ABSENCE</u>

Section 1.

The parties agree that the provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding regarding Fringe Benefits, Mileage and Retirement between the County of Los Angeles and the Coalition of County Unions, AFL CIO, in effect during the term of this agreement shall apply to employees in this Unit but are subject to change as a result of negotiations with this Unit.

Section 2. Pregnancy Leave

The parties agree that departmental Management shall grant leave of absence without pay to any full time permanent employee who becomes disabled as a result of pregnancy, which disability prevents her from performing the duties of her position. Such leave must be requested in writing by the employee and will be granted pursuant to Civil Service Rules and such procedure as are determined by the Chief Executive Office and by the department head.

The parties further agree that upon commencement of an authorized pregnancy leave of absence, any full time permanent employee disabled as a result of pregnancy, which disability prevents her from performing the duties of her position as certified by her physician, may use sick leave benefits for which she is otherwise eligible in the same manner as for any other disability resulting from sickness or injury.

Section 3. Military Leave

The provision of Los Angeles County Code Section 6.20.080 (c) and applicable law, shall apply to the employee in the bargaining unit covered by this MOU.

Section 4. Jury Duty

Any employee in a permanent position who is ordered to serve on a jury shall be allowed the necessary time to be absent from work at his/her regular pay, provided he/she deposits any fees received for such jury service with the County treasurer. Further, upon prior notice from the employee, subject to receipt of a "Certificate of Jury Service," the department head will, when appropriate, and in accordance with regulations issued by the Chief Executive Officer, convert the employee's usual shift to the department's regular five-day (40 hours per week), Monday through Friday day shift, during the period of time he/she is subject to reporting to the court for jury duty.

Section 5. Witness Leave

Any full-time employee who is required to be absent from work by a subpoena properly issued by a court, or an agency or commission legally empowered to subpoena witnesses, which subpoena compels his/her presence as a witness, except as a party or as an expert witness, shall be allowed the time to be absent from work at his/her regular pay to comply with such subpoena, provided he/she deposits his/her fees received for such service with the County treasurer.

ARTICLE 12 TOOL REPLACEMENT

Section 1. Tool Replacement

The County will repair or replace hand tools which are broken or damaged in the County service or lost through verified theft from County property, and which tools the employee is required to possess by his department head and are listed by such department head on approved inventory list. Any hand tools replaced shall be replaced with comparable valued hand tools and such damaged or broken tools shall become the property of the County.

Management will replace personal hand tools lost through verified theft from County property provided that such loss is not caused by the employee's negligence.

It is understood that employees will be responsible for taking good care of their tools, bother personal and County, and that they will be held responsible for obvious neglect and misuse. Management reserves the right to review cases where there are repeated or high frequency claims for tool replacement.

ARTICLE 13 UNIFORMS

Section 1.

A minimum of five (5) shirts and five (5) trousers and one (1) jacket will be provided, annually, to each full-time, permanent employee where Management requires that distinctive uniforms be worn by such persons rather than regular work clothes.

Department of Public Works - Work Boot Reimbursement

With management approval, employees represented by BU 412 may receive reimbursement for the purchase of work boots. Reimbursement amount shall not exceed \$150 per pair of boots.

Reimbursement is contingent upon the suitability and job-appropriateness of the work boots, which will be solely determined by the supervisor in consideration of operational needs, and safety standards (which includes but is not limited to departmental policy, rules, and regulations such as those established by the American National Standards Institute, American Society of Testing and Materials, and Cal/OSHA).

Replacement of safety work boots will be provided on an as needed basis based upon management approval.

The following language is applicable only to the Fire Department:

Clothing:

Five (5) shirts and Five (5) trousers and one (1) jacket will be provided on a one time basis to each full time, permanent employee where Management requires that distinctive uniforms be worn by such persons rather than regular work clothes.

Those employees who currently have been given the five (5) shirts and five (5) trousers and one (1) jacket, they will be replaced on an as needed basis, upon management's approval.

Boots:

The Fire department will provide on a one time basis an allowance up to \$200 for department approved safety footwear.

The employee will procure the safety foot wear that is job appropriate and meets safety standards as established by American National Standards Institute, American Society of Testing and Materials, and Cal/OSHA, complete a reimbursement request, attach the original receipt and proof of purchase and submit to their supervisor for approval send these documents to the Divisional Manager for final approval and whereupon after approval from the Divisional Manager, then submit to the Financial Management Division to request a reimbursement check be issued to the employee, for the amount of the purchase not to exceed \$200.

Section 2.

Management agrees to replace uniform items on as-needed basis.

The Fire Department agrees to replace on an as needed basis, upon management's approval, to replace the items stated in Section 1.

Section 3.

The following language is only applicable to the Sheriff's Department:

Where Management requires employees in the unit to wear specific and distinctive uniforms, such uniforms will be provided by Management as an initial issuance of five (5) shirts, five trousers, and one (1) jacket. Management agrees to replace annually up to five (5) shirts and five (5) trousers. Upon Management approval, jackets will be replaced as necessary due to wear, fit, or condition.

ARTICLE 14 OUT-OF-CLASS ASSIGNMENTS

Section 1. Definition

- A. For the purpose of this Article, an out-of-class assignment is the full-time performance of all the significant duties of an allocated funded position in one class by an individual in another class.
- B. The amount of the bonus shall be two standard salary schedules and shall not constitute a base rate. When a class is compensated on a flat rate, the amount of the bonus shall not exceed 5% of the base rate. Where the difference between rates of the employee class and the out-of-class assignment is less than the above bonus the employee shall receive the rate for the higher class. This bonus is paid pursuant to the conditions described below.

Section 2. Conditions

A. If an employee is assigned to an out-of-class assignment for more than 20 consecutive working days, management shall upon the employee's or union's written request for relief either:

Appoint the employee according to Civil Service Rules. If the person is appointed within 30 calendar days from the date of request for relief, no bonus under this article is to be paid; or

Return the employee to an assignment in his/her own class. If such return is made within 30 calendar days of the request for relief, no bonus under this Article is to be paid; or

Pay the employee the bonus. The bonus is paid from the date of request for relief, he/she performs the out-of-class assignment and terminates when the conditions of this Article are no longer met.

This bonus is not applicable to persons employed on a temporary, recurrent, or less than full time basis.

B. It is the intent of management to avoid working an employee on an out-of-class assignment for a prolonged period of time.

Section 3. Special Provisions

A. Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the authority of management to make temporary assignments to different or additional locations, shifts or work duties for the purpose of meeting emergency situations over which the department has no control. However, such assignment shall not extend beyond the period of such emergency.

- B. Nothing in this Article shall be construed as limiting management's authority to make temporary incidental assignments on higher rated classifications work, or to assign employees out-of-class for the purpose of training without any additional compensation for the duration of such training (established training programs). Any such training program shall have a specific period of duration. Such training period may be extended, by mutual agreement of the employee and management, if necessary for the employee to complete the program. Written confirmation of such assignment will be placed in the employee's personnel file upon request of the employee.
- C. It is agreed that the provisions of this article will be applied within departments and districts within the County and is not intended to apply across departmental organizational units.
- D. Upon the employee's written request, a written confirmation of his/her out-of-class assignment shall be placed in the employees personnel file after completion of the out-of-class assignment. A copy will be provided to the employee.
- E. Grievances filed under this Article may be filed under the expedited arbitration procedure set forth in this MOU.

ARTICLE 15 BULLETIN BOARDS

Management will furnish and maintain Unit bulletin board space agreeable to the parties at locations where employees covered by this Understanding are employed. The boards shall be used only for the following subject:

- A. Union recreational, social and related news bulletins;
- B. Scheduled Union meetings;
- C. Information concerning Union elections or the results thereof;
- D. Reports of official business of Union including reports of committees or the Board of Directors; and
- E. Any other written material which first has been approved by the department or district head.

Prior to posting, material described in Paragraph E above shall be initialed by an authorized representative of both Unit and the applicable department or district head. Bulletins requiring approval shall be acted upon within one (1) normal working day.

In cases where Unit represents more than one representation unit at a work location, the space described above will become the bulletin board space for all employees represented by Unit at that work location.

ARTICLE 16 CONSULTATION

A. It is the intent of Los Angeles County that all work assignments requiring the skills and training of employees in this unit shall be made to employees working under this unit. Management will meet with the Joint Council or its credentialed representatives for the sole purpose of consultation when changing or reviewing job specifications or making significant changes in other working conditions of the employee in representation unit. It is understood and agreed that changes or revisions in job specifications will be accomplished in accordance with established Civil Service rules and procedures.

The County shall provide the Union the opportunity to meet and consult on revised class specifications of other bargaining units if the County revises a class specification that includes examples of duties that are typically performed by employees of this bargaining unit.

B. County of Los Angeles job classifications can be found on the Department of Human Resources website at: http://dhrdcap.co.la.ca.us/classspec/index.cfm.

ARTICLE 17 PERSONNEL FILES

An employee or his certified representative with the written consent of the employee, may inspect that employee's personnel file with the exception of all material obtained from other employers and agencies at the time that employee was hired.

An employee shall be advised of, and entitled to read, any written statement by the employee's supervisor or departmental management regarding his work performance or conduct if such statement is to be placed in his personnel file. The employee shall acknowledge that he has read such material by affixing his signature on the copy to be filed, with the understanding that such signature merely signifies that he has read the material to be filed but does not necessarily indicate agreement with content. If the employee refuses to sign, the supervisor shall note his refusal on the copy to be filed along with the supervisor's signature and the signature of a witness to the employee's refusal to sign.

The employee may file a grievance regarding any such document within the prescribed time limits of the grievance procedure. If the employee fails to file a grievance within the designated time limits, the document becomes part of the official files until the grievance procedure or civil service appeal rights have been exhausted. Grievance under this provision shall not be subject to the Arbitration provisions of the Grievance Procedure unless they involve violation of specific provision of this agreement.

Management agrees that no properly used full paid sick leave used in the twelve months prior to an Appraisal of Promotability or a Performance Evaluation will be referenced on such forms.

On reviewing his personnel file, an employee may request and have any written warnings issued more than two years prior removed from his personnel file except as such may be part of an official permanent record.

ARTICLE 18 ACCESS TO WORK LOCATIONS

All credentialed Joint Council representatives shall be given access to non-patient and non-security work locations during working hours to conduct grievance investigations and observe working conditions on the condition that Joint Council representatives shall comply with the regulations established in this Article, and that Joint Council representatives shall not interfere with work operations of any department or district of the County.

Headquarters Work Locations

When visiting any Department or District headquarters work location, Joint Council representatives shall contact the personnel office prior to entering any work areas. The Joint Council representative shall state the purpose of his visit, i.e., grievance investigation or observation of working conditions. The management designate in the personnel office may deny access to work areas if it is deemed that a visit at that time shall interfere with the operations of the department. If access is denied, the Joint Council representative shall be informed when access will be made available. Such access shall not be more than 24 hours, excluding Saturdays and Sundays and legal holidays, after the time of the Joint Council representative's request, unless otherwise mutually agreed to.

Field Work Locations

Joint Council representatives desiring access to field work locations shall either telephone the appropriate management representative responsible for the district or yard or shall personally contact such management representative upon entering any work location under his supervisor. The management representative contacted may deny access to a work location if he deems a visit at the time indicated shall interfere with the operations of the department or district. If access is denied, the Joint Council representative shall be informed when access will be made available. Such access shall not be more than 24 hours, excluding Saturdays and Sundays and legal holidays, after the time of the Joint Council representative's request, unless otherwise mutually agreed to.

Joint Council Representative List

The Joint Council shall give to each Department or District Head, having employees in the unit, and the Chief Executive Officer a written list of the names of all authorized Joint Council representatives, which list shall be kept current by the Joint Council. Access to work locations shall only be granted to Joint Council representatives on the current list.

Joint Council Meetings

Joint Council representatives shall fully comply with the procedures and requirements defined in the Director of Personnel's Rule #693 prior to holding any meeting with employees in any Department.

ARTICLE 19 STEWARDS

It is agreed and understood by the parties to this Memorandum of Understanding that there shall be a reasonable number of stewards allowed for this Unit. The Joint Council shall give each Department Head having employees in the Unit a written list of the names of employees selected as stewards which list shall be kept current by the Joint Council.

The Joint Council agrees that whenever investigation or the processing of grievances is to be transacted during working hours, only that amount of time necessary to bring about a prompt disposition of the matter will be utilized. Stewards desiring to leave their work locations to transact such investigations or processing shall first obtain permission from their immediate supervisor and inform him of the nature of the business. Permission to leave will be granted promptly unless such absence would cause an undue interruption of work.

Upon entering other work locations, the steward shall inform the cognizant supervisor of the nature of his business. Permission to leave the job will be granted promptly to the employee involved unless such absence would cause an undue interruption of work. If the employee cannot be made available, the steward will be informed when the employee will be made available. The steward shall perform the aforementioned duties without loss of pay.

ARTICLE 20 SAFETY AND HEALTH

Section 1. Parties' Responsibilities

It is the duty of Management to make every reasonable effort to provide and maintain a safe place of employment. Joint Council will cooperate by encouraging all employees to perform their work in a safe manner. It is the duty of all employees in the course of performing their regularly assigned duties to be alert to unsafe practices, equipment, and conditions and to report any such unsafe practices or conditions to their immediate supervisors. If such condition cannot be satisfactorily remedied by the immediate supervisor, the employee has the right to submit the matter in writing either personally or through his Steward to the local facility Safety Officer or the Departmental Safety Officer, if there is no local Safety Officer.

On any matter of safety that is not resolved by the Safety Officer within a reasonable period of time, the Steward may confer with the Safety Officer who will respond in writing.

If the Steward is not satisfied with the response of the Safety Officer, a Joint Council Business Representative may consult with the Chief of the Workers' Compensation & Occupational Health Branch of the Department of Personnel or his designate. A representative of such Branch shall investigate the matter and advise the department head and Joint Council of his findings and recommendations, if any.

ARTICLE 21 LEAVES OF ABSENCE FOR UNION BUSINESS

Upon written request of the Employee Representative or the business manager of a Craft Council or Local Union Affiliate, one employee in each major trade shall, where conditions permit, be granted a leave of absence without pay in accordance with Civil Service Rules. Said leave of absence shall not exceed one year but may be renewed annually. Leaves shall be primarily for the purpose of conducting Union business with the County of Los Angeles.

ARTICLE 22 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AND DUES

Section 1. Deductions and Dues

It is agreed that Union dues and such other deductions as may be properly requested and lawfully permitted shall be deducted, in accordance with the provisions of applicable State law, monthly by Management from the salary of each employee covered hereby who files with County a written authorization requesting that such deduction be made.

Remittance of the aggregate amount of all dues and other proper deductions made from the salaries of employees covered hereunder shall be made to the Union by Management within thirty (30) working days after the conclusion of the month in which said dues and deductions were deducted.

Section 2. Security Clause

Any employees in this unit who have authorized Union dues deductions on the effective date of this agreement or at any time subsequent to the effective date of this agreement shall continue to have such dues deduction made by the County during the term of this agreement; provided, however, that any employee in the Unit may terminate such Union dues during the period September 1 through September 30th, in any year of the contract, by notifying the Union of their termination of Union dues deduction.

Such notification shall be by certified mail and should be in the form of a letter containing the following information: employee name, employee number, job classification, department name and name of Union from which

dues deductions are to be canceled. The union will provide the County's Auditor-Controller with the appropriate documentation to process these dues cancellations within ten (10) business days after the close of the withdrawal period.

Section 3.

Employee Lists

The County will furnish the Union with a monthly list of employees in the Bargaining Unit. The employee list shall contain the name, employee number, date of hire into the Unit, classification title, item number, item sub, item step salary rate, work location, latest hire date and job appointment date of all employees who enter the Bargaining Unit and who are covered by this Memorandum of Understanding. This employee list shall be provided to the Union at a cost to be determined by the Auditor-Controller. Such lists shall include new hires, and employees promoted, demoted, or transferred into the Bargaining Unit. The monthly list shall also contain information which includes the names and effective date of employees leaving this Bargaining Unit.

ARTICLE 23 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

It is the exclusive right of the County to determine the mission of each of its constituent department, boards, and commissions, set standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control and discretion over its organization and operations. It is also the exclusive right of the County to direct its employees, take disciplinary action for proper cause, relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons, and determine the methods, means and personnel by which the County's operations are to be conducted; provided, however, that the exercise of such rights does not preclude employees or their representatives from conferring or raising grievances about the practical consequences that decisions on these matters may have on wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.

ARTICLE 24 EMPLOYEE LISTS

Section 1.

Management will provide each member of the Council a list of all employees with addresses and separated by union membership upon request.

Section 2.

Management will supply to all employees newly hired, promoted or transferred into this Unit, a form supplied by the Council which will advise such employees that the Building Trades Council is the certified bargaining representative of the Unit.

Section 3.

The Union representative will be granted access to department facilities to provide membership information to new members of this bargaining unit.

Section 4. New Employee Orientation

Los Angeles/Orange Counties Building and Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO and I.U.O.E Local 501 shall be provided with a ten-day notice to conduct a face to face meeting of authorized Los Angeles/Orange Counties Building and Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO Representative(s) and I.U.O.E. Local 501 Representatives, including recognized Union Stewards, on County time with new employee(s) for a maximum uninterrupted time of up to 60 minutes at a location away from the employee(s)' work area (e.g. training area, conference room, empty office) and absent other distractions, including management, Human Resources, and other union(s) representatives being present.

The Los Angeles/Orange Counties Building and Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO Representative(s) and I.U.O.E. Local 501 Representatives may provide the new employee(s) any information and materials about, Los Angeles/Orange Counties Building and Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO and I.U.O.E. Local 501, its programs, benefits of becoming a member, and membership card.

ARTICLE 25 CONTRACTING OUT AND TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS

In the event the County enters into any agreement with another public employer or private entity which involves the transfer of functions now being performed by employees in this representation Unit or the law provides for the transfer of functions now being performed by employees in this Unit to another public or private agency, the County will advise such public or private entity of the existence and terms of this Memorandum of Understanding and will immediately advise the Union of such agreement or law. In addition, the County will consult with the employer absorbing a County function to encourage utilization of affected employees by the new employer.

Prior to the release of a Request for Proposal (RFP) the Department shall provide a copy of the RFP to The Council and in coordination with the Chief Executive Office Employee Relations Division offer to meet and consult with the Union within fifteen (15) business days. Additionally, prior to the release of any Government Code Section 31000.4 and Proposition A contract RFP, the parties agree to jointly review and consult on said contracts. The review will include but is not limited to the cost savings, service delivery and the quality control aspects of the recommended contract(s).

When advance knowledge of the impact of pending changes in function, organization, or operations is available which will result in the abolishment of positions or when there is any major reassignment of functions from one department to another or to another agency, Management will make an intensive effort to either reassign or transfer affected employees to other positions for which they qualify, or train affected employees for new positions in order to retain their services.

ARTICLE 26 OBLIGATION TO SUPPORT

The parties agree that subsequent to the execution of this Memorandum of Understanding and during the period of time said Memorandum is pending before the Board of Supervisors for action, neither Joint Council nor Management, nor their authorized representatives, will appear before the Board of Supervisors or meet with members of the Board of Supervisors individually to advocate any amendment, addition or deletion to the terms and conditions of this Memorandum of Understanding. It is further understood that this Article shall not preclude the parties from appearing before the Board of Supervisors to advocate or urge the adoption and approval if this Memorandum of Understanding in its entirety.

ARTICLE 27 STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

During the life of this agreement no work stoppage, strikes, slowdowns, or picketing shall be caused or sanctioned by the Joint Council, and no lockouts shall be made by the County.

In the event any employees covered by this agreement, individually or collectively, violate the provisions of this Article and the Joint Council fails to exercise good faith in halting the work interruption, the Joint Council and the employees involved shall be deemed in violation of this Article and the County shall be entitled to seek all remedies available to it under applicable law.

ARTICLE 28 PROVISIONS OF LAW

It is understood and agreed that this Memorandum of Understanding is subject to all current and future applicable federal, state, and county laws and regulations, the Charter of the County of Los Angeles, and any lawful rules and regulations enacted by County's Civil Service Commission, Employee Relations Commission, or similar independent commissions of the County. If any part or provision of this Memorandum of Understanding is in conflict or inconsistent with such applicable provisions of federal, state, or County laws, rules and regulations, or is otherwise mandated as invalid or unenforceable by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such part or provision shall be suspended and superseded by such applicable law or regulations, and the remainder of this Memorandum of Understanding shall not be affected thereby.

ARTICLE 29 FULL UNDERSTANDING, MODIFICATION, WAIVER

- A. This Memorandum of Understanding sets forth the full and entire understanding of the parties regarding the matters set forth herein, and any other prior or existing understanding or agreements by the parties, whether formal or informal, regarding any such matters are hereby superseded or terminated in their entirety. No employee covered by this Memorandum of Understanding shall receive any compensation or benefits other than those specifically set forth in the provisions of this agreement or required by Federal, State or County law.
- B. Except as specifically provided herein, it is agreed and understood that each party hereto voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives its right and agrees that the other shall not be required to negotiate with respect to any subject or matter covered herein or with respect to any other matters within the scope of negotiations, during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding.
- C. No agreement, alteration, understanding, variation, waiver or modification of any of the terms or provisions contained herein shall in any manner be binding upon the parties hereto unless made and executed in writing by all parties hereto, and if required, approved and implemented by County's Board of Supervisors.
- D. The waiver of any breach, term or condition of this Memorandum of Understanding by either party shall not constitute a precedent in the future enforcement of all its terms and provisions.

ARTICLE 30 AUTHORIZED AGENTS

For purpose of administering the terms and provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding:

- A. Management's principal authorized agent shall be County's Chief Executive Officer, or his duly authorized representative (Address: 500 West Temple Street, Los Angeles, California 90012, Telephone: (213) 974-4029) except where a particular Management representative is specifically designated in connection with the performance of a specified function or obligation set forth herein.
- B. Joint Council's principal authorized agent shall be:
 - Executive Secretary, Los Angeles/Orange Counties Building and Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO or his duly authorized representative (Address: 1626 Beverly Boulevard, Los Angeles, California 90026, Telephone: (213) 483-4222);
 - 2) Business Manager of Local 501 or his duly authorized representative (address 2405 West Third Street, Los Angeles, California 90057; Telephone: (213) 385-1561).

<u>ARTICLE 31</u> <u>LABOR - MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE</u>

Section 1. <u>Joint Labor Management Committee</u>

A. <u>PURPOSE</u>

Management or Labor may request a discussion of County-wide issues that are of concern.

B. <u>PROCEDURE</u>

- Provide an agenda at least two weeks (ten business days) in advance of meeting.
- 2. The agenda shall contain no more than three (3) items for discussion.
- Not more than five (5) representatives from both Labor and Management with direct knowledge of agenda items may attend the Joint Labor Management Committee, absent operational impact.
- 4. Management and Labor will respond within sixty (60) calendar days.
- 5. If the meeting must be postponed by either party, every effort will be made to reschedule the meeting to a date/time mutually agreed upon by the parties.

6. The Committee shall consist of members from the current bargaining team for units 411/412 and management members from the Department of Parks and Recreation, Internal Services Department, Fire Department, Department of Health Services, Sheriff's Department, Department of Public Works and the Chief Executive Office (CEO).

Section 2. <u>Labor Management Committee</u>

A. PURPOSE

Management or Labor may request a discussion of departmental issues that are of concern.

B. PROCEDURE

- 1. Provide an agenda at least two weeks (ten business days) in advance of meeting.
- 2. The agenda shall contain no more than three (3) items for discussion.
- 3. Not more than three (3) representatives from both Labor and Management with direct knowledge of agenda items may attend the Labor Management Committee, absent operational impact.
- 4. Management and Labor will respond within sixty (60) calendar days.
- 5. If the meeting must be postponed by either party, every effort will be made to reschedule the meeting to a date/time mutually agreed upon by the parties.

Section 3. Classification/Compensation Study - I.U.O.E. Operating Engineers

The parties mutually agree to the performance of a classification/compensation study

for the following classifications within I.U.O.E. Operating Engineers, BU 412:

- 1. 7202 Asst. Chief Stationary Engineer
- 2. 7203 Chief Stationary Engineer
- 3. 7227 Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Supervisor

Operating Engineers Classifications shall be studied after negotiations, in connection with changes in the salary benchmark from SEII to Control Specialist.

ARTICLE 32 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1. Purpose

The purpose of the grievance procedure is to provide a just and equitable method for the resolution of grievances without discrimination, coercion, restraint, or reprisal against any employee who may submit or be involved in a grievance.

Section 2. Definitions

- 1. "Grievance" means a complaint by an employee concerning the interpretation or application of the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding or of rules or regulations governing personnel practices or conditions, which complaint has not been resolved satisfactorily in an informal manner between the employee and his immediate supervisor.
- "Business Days" means calendar days exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays.

Section 3. Responsibilities

 Joint Council agrees to encourage an employee to discuss his complaint with his immediate supervisor. The immediate supervisor will, upon request of an employee, discuss the employee's complaint with him at a mutually satisfactory time.

- 2. Departmental management has the responsibility to:
 - A. Inform an employee on any limitation of the department's authority to fully resolve the grievance; and
 - B. Supply the employee with the necessary information to process his grievance to the proper agency or authority.
 - C. The Joint Council agrees to encourage an employee, who files a formal written grievance, to state clearly and concisely the specific section(s) being grieved, the article(s) violated and the specific remedy requested.

Section 4. Waivers and Time Limits

- Failure by management to reply to the employee's grievance within the time limits specified automatically grants to the employee the right to process the grievance to the next level.
- Any level of review, or any time limits established in this procedure, may be waived or extended by mutual agreement confirmed in writing.
- 3. If an employee fails to appeal from one level to the next level within the time limits established in this grievance procedure, the grievance shall be considered settled on the basis of the last decision and the grievance shall not be subject to further appeal or reconsideration.
- 4. By mutual agreement, the grievance may revert to a prior level for reconsideration.

Section 5. Employee Rights and Restrictions

- The employee has the right to the assistance of a representative in the preparation of his written grievance, and to represent him in formal grievance meetings. The grievant may be required by either party to be present in meetings with management for purposes of discussing the grievance.
- 2. A County employee selected as a representative in a grievance is required to obtain the permission of his immediate supervisor to absent himself from his duties to attend a grievance meeting. The employee representative shall give his supervisor reasonable advance notice to ensure that his absence will not unduly interfere with departmental operations.
- 3. An employee may represent his grievance to management on County time. In scheduling the time, place and duration of any grievance meeting, both the employee and management will give due consideration to the duties each has in the essential operations of the department. No employee shall lose his rights because of management imposed limitations in scheduling meetings.

Section 6. The Parties' Right and Restrictions

 Only a person selected by the employee and made known to management prior to a scheduled formal grievance meeting shall have the right to represent or advocate as an employee's representative.

- If the employee elects to be represented in a formal grievance meeting, the department may designate a management representative to be present at such meeting.
- Management shall notify Joint Council of any grievance involving the terms and conditions of this Memorandum of Understanding.
- 4. The Council representative has the right to be present at any formal grievance meeting concerning a grievance that directly involves the interpretation or application of the specific terms and provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding.
- 5. If the Joint Council representative elects to attend any formal grievance meeting, he must inform departmental management prior to such meeting. The department may also designate a management representative to be present at such meeting.

Section 7. Procedure

Informal Step

Within ten business days from the occurrence of the matter on which a complaint is based, or within five business days from knowledge of such occurrence, and employee is encouraged to discuss his complaint in a meeting with his immediate supervisor. The supervisor shall verbally reply to the employee's complaint within three business days from the date of the discussion.

Step 1. Supervisor

- A. Within ten business days from the date of the informal discussion with the supervisor, or within ten business days from the occurrence of the matter on which a complaint is based, or within ten business days from his knowledge such occurrence, and employee shall file a formal written grievance. Three copies of the departmental grievance form shall be completed by the employee stating the nature of the grievance and the remedy he requests from his departmental management. The employee shall submit two copies to his immediate supervisor and retain the third copy.
- B. Within ten business days the immediate supervisor shall give his decision in writing to the employee on the original copy of the grievance.

Step 2. Middle Management

A. Within ten business days from his receipt of the supervisor's written decision and using the returned original copy of the grievance form, the employee may appeal to the appropriate level of management as previously indicated by his department head. The department head has the authority to waive the middle management step if such step is not appropriate because of the size of his department. The middle management representative shall discuss the grievance with the supervisor concerned and the employee before a decision is reached by him.

B. Within ten business days from receipt of the grievance, the middle management representative shall give a written decision to the employee using the original copy of the grievance.

Step 3. Department Head

- A. Within ten business days from his receipt of the decision resulting from the previous step, the employee may appeal to the department head using the original copy of the grievance.
- B. Within ten business days from the receipt of the employee's grievance, the department head or his designated representative who has not been involved in the grievance in prior levels shall make a thorough review of the grievance, meet with the parties involved and give written decision to the employee.
- C. On matters that directly concern or involve the interpretation or application of the specific terms and provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding, the written decision of the department head or his designated representative shall be final, unless the grievance is submitted to arbitration pursuant to Section 8 hereof.

Section 8. Arbitration

- 1. Within 30 calendar days from the receipt of the written decision of the department head, or his designated representative, the Joint Council may request that the grievance be submitted to arbitration as provided for hereinafter.
- 2. Only those grievances which directly concern or involve the interpretation or application of the specific terms and provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding may be submitted to arbitration hereunder. In no event shall such arbitration extend to:
 - A. The interpretation, application, merits, or legality of any state or local law or ordinance, including specifically all ordinances, adopted by County's Board of Supervisors; unless the arbitrator, in his discretion finds it necessary to interpret or apply such state or local law in order to resolve the grievance which has been submitted to the arbitrator.
 - B. The interpretation, application, merits, or legality of any or all of the County of Los Angeles Civil Service rules, nor matters under the jurisdiction of the Civil Service Commission for which said Commission has established procedures or processes by which employees or employee organizations may appeal to, or request review by, said Civil Service Commission, including, but not limited to discharges, reductions, discrimination; nor

- C. The interpretation, application merits or legality of the rules or regulations of the department head, the Department of Personnel, or any other County department, agency, or commission, unless the arbitrator, in his discretion, finds it necessary to interpret or apply such rules or regulations in order to resolve the grievance which has been submitted to the arbitrator.
- D. Grievances on competent or better performance evaluations which do not meet the guidelines set forth at the Employee Relations Commission meeting of December 19, 1986.
- 3. In the event the Joint Council desires to request a grievance, which meets the requirements of paragraph 2 hereof, be submitted to arbitration, it shall within the time requirements set forth above send a written request for arbitration to the County's Employee Relations Commission with a copy thereof simultaneously transmitted to the Employee Relations Division of the Chief Executive Office, which request shall:
 - A. Set forth the specific issue or issues still unresolved through the grievance procedure and which are to be submitted to arbitration;
 - B. The parties shall select an arbitrator by mutual agreement and recommend to the Employee Relations Commission that the individual be appointed for the purpose of conducting the arbitration proceeding.

In the event the parties cannot agree on a choice within thirty working days from date of receipt of the request for arbitration, the parties shall request that the Employee Relations Commission provide them with a panel of five arbitrators. Upon receipt of the Employee Relations

Commission panel, the parties shall alternately strike one name each from the panel and the last name left will be appointed as the arbitrator in the case by the Employee Relations Commission.

- C. Arbitration procedures conducted under the authority of this article shall be held at an appropriate location in the County Hall of Administration except when another location is mutually agreed upon by the parties to the case.
- 4. Arbitration of grievances hereunder will be limited to the formal grievance as originally filed by the employee to the extent that said grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved. Arbitration hereunder shall be conducted in accordance with applicable rules and procedures adopted or specified by County's Employee Relations Commission, unless the parties hereto mutually agree to other rules or procedures for the conduct of such arbitration. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the parties involved, it being understood and agreed that all other expenses including but not limited to, fees for witnesses, transcripts, and similar cost incurred by the parties during such arbitration, will be the responsibility of the individual party involved.

- 5. Prior to a hearing by an arbitrator, a representative of the County and the Joint Council shall meet and prepare a submission statement setting forth the issues(s) to be determined which shall be submitted to the arbitrator. In the event the County and the Joint Council cannot jointly agree on a submission statement, then at the hearing, each party shall present to the arbitrator its own submission statement in which case the arbitrator shall determine the issues(s) to be resolved.
- 6. The decision of an arbitrator resulting from any arbitration of grievance hereunder shall not add to, subtract from, or otherwise modify the terms and conditions of this Memorandum of Understanding.
- The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding upon the Joint Council. To the extent the decision and award of the arbitrator does not require legislative action by the Board of Supervisors, such decision and award shall be binding upon the County. If within 60 days of receiving notice of decision and award requiring legislative action is not taken, the arbitrator's decision and award shall have not force or effect whatsoever. The Joint Council may then resort to a court of competent jurisdiction to pursue whatever other legal remedies are available to it under the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding.

8. A written decision of an arbitrator resulting from the arbitration of a grievance under the following Articles shall be entirely advisory in nature and shall not be binding upon any of the parties:

Recognition

Purpose

Implementation

Term

Renegotiation

Discrimination

Safety and Health

Payroll Deduction and Dues

Authorized Agents

Provisions of Law

Participation in Health Services Out-of-Class Committee.

ARTICLE 33 GRIEVANCES - GENERAL IN CHARACTER

In order to provide an effective mechanism whereby disagreements between the Joint Council and Management concerning the interpretation or application of any of the of this Memorandum of Understanding affecting the rights of the parties or the working conditions of a significantly large number of employees in the unit may be effectively resolved, the following procedures are agreed upon:

A. Within sixty (60) calendar days from the occurrence of the matter in which a complaint is based or within sixty (60) calendar days from its knowledge of such an occurrence where either the Joint Council or Management has reason to believe that the other is not correctly interpreting or applying any of the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding, such party may request in writing that a meeting be held with the authorized representatives of the other party who have authority to make effective recommendations for the resolution of the matter. Such written request shall set in detail the facts giving rise to the request for the meeting and shall set for the proposed resolution sought.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of the request of such a meeting, the parties will meet for the purpose of discussing and attempting to resolve the disagreement.

- B. Within fifteen (15) business days of such meeting, and in the event the matter is not satisfactorily resolved; the initiating party shall have the right to meet with the principal representative(s) of the other party who have the authority to resolve the matter. For purposes of this provision, Management's principal representative(s) shall mean its Chief Executive Officer or his authorized representative, and any other County department head or his authorized representative, who has authority to resolve the matter.
- C. Within 30 calendar days after the meeting provided in B above, if the matter is not satisfactorily resolved, and if the disagreement meets the requirements of Section 8, Subsection 2 of Article 32 the disagreement may be submitted to arbitration in accordance with the provisions of Section 8 of Article of this Memorandum of Understanding.

It is further understood that this Article is not intended as a substitute or alternative for the grievance procedures set forth in Article 32 of this Memorandum of Understanding. Instead, this Article is intended to provide a procedure to resolve disagreements affecting the rights of the parties or disagreements arising from the application of the terms of this Memorandum of Understanding affecting the working conditions of a significantly large number of the employees in the unit, as distinguished from the rights of individual employees. Accordingly, the parties agree that the procedures set forth herein shall not be implemented where the dispute or complaint involved is or could be effectively brought by an employee or employees, and otherwise processed through the grievance procedures set forth in Article 32 hereof.

ARTICLE 34 NOTICE OF LAYOFF

Section 1. Board Policy on Work Force Reduction

It is the intent of the parties during the term of this MOU to comply with the June 21st and April 4th, 1995 Board policy on workforce reductions.

If the County determines that workforce reductions are necessary, it will reduce to the greatest extent feasible the planned number of County personnel to be demoted or laid off by:

- Discontinuing non-County contracted temporary personnel Government Code
 Section 31000 et seq. who perform functions comparable to County positions
 subject to demotion or layoff, and
- b. Take other action appropriate to mitigate the adverse impact on workforce reductions on permanent employees.

Permanent or temporary County employees laid off, will not be replaced by a contract employee.

Section 2. Department of Human Resources

The Department of Human Resources shall coordinate with Departmental management to implement Board Policy on workforce reductions on a County-wide basis and enhance the County's ongoing efforts to find alternative placement for employees subject to layoff or demotion due to workforce reductions. Management shall factor in attrition, implement transfers of qualified employees to available vacancies, recommend to the Board and/or CEO to reduce or discontinue departmental personnel services contracts and allow voluntary demotions before laying off any members of a bargaining unit.

Section 3. Notice Provisions for Layoffs and Demotions.

To the greatest extent feasible the Department of Human Resources and/or Department Management will give ten (10) business days' notice prior to any layoff, demotion, or involuntary transfer of a permanent County employee.

APPENDIX A

CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAM COMMITTEE

60 Days from the date of Board of Supervisors approval of MOU, the parties shall convene to create a Continuing Education Program Committee (Committee) on a mutually agreed upon date time and location.

The Committee shall appoint equal number of members comprised of management and labor.

The Committee shall collectively develop a Continuing Education Program Agenda in advance of each meeting.

The Committee shall provide a timeline for response to each action item.

If the meetings are postponed by either party, every effort will be made to reschedule to a mutually agreed upon date/time.

APPENDIX A. shall sunset upon contract expiration date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Memorandum of Understanding the day, month and year first above written.

JOINT COUNCIL OF LOS ANGELES / ORANGE COUNTIES BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION TRADES COUNCIL AND THE I.U.O.E., LOCAL 501

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES AUTHORIZED MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIVE

Chris Hannan

Council Representative
Building and Construction
Trades Council

SACHI A. HAMAI Chief Executive Officer

By _

Gavin Koon

Business Representative

I.U.O.E., Local 501

By

Ed Curly

Business Manager

and General Vice President

I.U.O.E., Local 501

TO BE JOINTLY SUBMITTED TO COUNTY'S BOARD OF SUPERVISORS